
 

     

Town of Alpine  

Planning & Zoning Commission 
 MINUTES 

 
DATE:  December 12th, 2006 
Attendance: P&Z members: Pat Marolf, Dave Gustafson & Kennis Lutz. Paula Stevens is absent & excused. Others in attendance:  
see attached sheet. 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
1 - CALL TO ORDER at 7:00. 
2 - ROLL CALL & QUORUM ESTABLISHED BY Kimberlee Jansen         
3 - TONIGHT'S APPOINTMENTS/ NEW BUSINESS:  

• Discuss e-mail from Elizabeth Koeckeritz regarding the $5000.00 building Ordinance and the International Existing 
Building Code. While researching the $5000.00 Ordinance and if it had been repealed when the new codes were adopted, 
Elizabeth K. discovered that the new codes refer to the International Existing Building Code. Rob W. explained problems 
with the existing building code; he further explained that this section has been removed from the 2006 Building Codes. Dave 
G. stated that he thought the $5000.00 Ordinance had been repealed, secretary confirmed that the new codes repealed the 
$5000.00 Ordinance, but the IEBC needed to be addressed. Rob W. reviewed the IBC and located the section Elizabeth had 
questioned. Rob W. read and explained this section to the board. Secretary inquired if we need to have an ordinance 
excluding this section from the IBC and the IRC, or should it be left the way it is. Rob W. stated that he would check into it, 
but he felt that maybe it was something they should delete. Dave G. stated this issue should be taken care of sooner rather 
than later. Rob W. stated he would recommend removing this section from the codes, Dave G. agreed.  

 
Kennis L. stated that this is new to him and he would like to research it more. Rob W. read further from the codes and gave 
some examples pertaining to the codes. Dave G. asked what they needed to resolve, he also inquired if the board wanted to 
act on it tonight or if they wished to wait. Kennis L. and Pat M. agreed they could act on it tonight. Pat M. stated that they 
should do away with the exceptions pertaining to the IEBC, Kennis L. and Dave G. agreed with him. Rob W. called out the 
section of the code they were referencing, “IBC 101.2 Scope, exception #2, which states existing buildings undergoing 
repairs, alterations of additions and change of occupancy shall comply with the International Existing Building Code.” Rob 
W. commented that exception is what should be deleted. Pat M. motioned to delete the 101.2 Scope exception 2 from the 
IBC, also delete 101.2 from the IRC Kennis L. seconded. VOTE:  3- Yes; 0- No; 0- Abstain; 1- Absent. 

 
4- UNFINISHED/ONGOING BUSINESS: 

• BANK OF STAR VALLEY - A-02-06 - Lot 701 Lakeview Estates Tract C - 102 Greys River Road - The additional 
information requested to process the building permit has been received. Rob W. has reviewed and approved. Joe S. has 
reviewed and approved. Rob W. explained a few comments he had for the project, first is the roof pitch. He has spoken to 
Heidi R. in regards to the roof pitch, they currently have it at 1.7 & 12 the town requires a minimum of 2 & 12. The truss 
manufacturers will change the roof pitch. Dave G. confirmed that Rob W. reviewed and sees no concerns with the project. 
Dave G. confirmed that the project meets all the setbacks, he reviewed Joe S. notes. Kennis L. motioned to approve the 
building permit. Pat M. seconded. VOTE:  3- Yes; 0- No; 0- Abstain; 1- Absent. 

 
• BULLMOOSE SALOON/HOTEL - C-02-04 - Lot 601 Lakeview Estates Tract C - 91 Hwy 89 - ¹We have not received 

the new plans for changes made to the hotel floor plans. ²The building permit and extension has expired, usual procedure is to 
have the applicant pay all new fees for a new building permit. ³There is also a lack of snow storage in the parking lot; the 
snow is being pushed into the Town Park. ⁴The owners have also applied for a microbrewery permit, what portions of the 
I.P.C. apply to this?  

 
Dave G. addressed the building permit first, he had spoken with Rob W. and he has been inspecting the project. Dave G. 
would like for the project to continue progressing in a forward manner. He suggested that a letter be sent informing them of 
the expired permit. Kennis L. inquired about the last meeting when Jim B. was here; Rob W. presented the information to the 
board. He also explained the changes to the building that differs from the plans that were submitted, Jim B. had said during 
this meeting he would submit the changed plans. Kennis L. asked if this expired permit was discussed when Jim B. was 
present, secretary informed him it was not discussed that night. Pat M. inquired about the extension, Jim B. applied for an 
extension in July 2006, his permit expired in September 2005 and the extension expired in September 2006. Kennis L. was 
concerned if Jim B. was given notice that his permits expired, Dave G. informed Kennis L. of the history with this business 
and their building permit for the hotel. Kennis L. stated that everybody needs to follow the same rules; Dave G. requested 
that a simple letter be written and sent informing Jim B. that he needs to renew his building permit.  

 



 

Kennis L. had questions regarding the difference between the old fee schedule and the new schedule; the new fee schedule 
came into affect while his permit and extension were valid. Kennis L. questioned the permit process, it was then explained 
that after you receive your building permit you have one year before it expires, then you can apply for an extension for an 
additional year. After this period the P&Z secretary requests a signed letter stating there has not been changes to the plans, 
then a new building permit is mailed, this permit is good for one year. If changes have been made to the plans then they need 
to be reviewed by the building inspector. The secretary gave an example of another resident who recently had a building 
permit and extension expire, and he paid new fees for a new building permit. Kennis L. stated that this information clarified 
the process for him.  

 
Dave G. again stated that a letter needed to be sent informing Jim B. that his permit and extension have expired and new fees 
need to be paid. Pat M. also suggested adding a reminder that the new plans still need to be submitted. Rob W. commented 
that the building is built to code but not as planned. Kennis L. stated that you are required to build to the plans that have been 
submitted; Rob W. commented that we need to have the plans as built.  
 
Moving onto the snow storage issue, secretary informed the P&Z board that the town maintenance personnel stated that snow 
from the parking lot had been pushed across the town roads and into the town park. Dave G. suggested that this also be 
included in the letter, Kennis L. suggested enclosing the snow removal mailing with the letter. Dave G. thought the 
microbrewery was more of a Town council issue; Rob W. stated that he would have to comply with the IPC. Dave G. also 
stated that Jim B. would have to comply with the State Fire Marshal Office in regards to the microbrewery.  

 
• WAGNER, Rob - Building Inspector - Discuss future building height limitations, current height is 45’; the recommended 

height would be 35’. Also discuss requiring on--site sanitation. Rob W. inquired if the board had any thoughts on the height 
issue; Dave G. replied that he would support what the fire department wanted. Dave G. commented that buildings should not 
be built higher than what the fire department can take care of. Rob W. would like to see the height lowered, but builders 
could seek a variance to build the roof height higher but have the eve height accessible for the fire department. Dave G. 
commented that variances are very difficult to get, variance requests have to follow guidelines set by state statutes.  

 
Rob W. stated that they had also discussed requiring any buildings over 35’ to have mandatory sprinkler systems. Kennis L. 
stated that he had a hard time limiting the height and feels requiring the sprinkler system is important. He understands what 
real estate is worth and how important the square footage is and trying to utilize all the space. Rob W. stated that he would 
prefer to see everything have sprinklers, he also noted that the codes have a limit of 2 ½ stories. Dave G. questioned if they 
can require a sprinkler system in all commercial buildings, Rob W. stated they would have to check w/ the town’s attorney. 
Kennis L. suggested before this is turned over to the attorney somebody should research what other town’s require, Rob W. 
will check into what Jackson requires.  

 
• STAR VALLEY MEDICAL CLINIC - Alpine Medical Clinic - Lot 2 Alpine West - 230 Elk Run - This is a non- 

compliance issue. Received the application and fees regarding the remodel work that has been done without a remodel 
permit. Letter from Star Valley Medical Center pending.  

 
• BECKSTEAD, Diane - F-05-06 - 170 Trail Drive - Non compliance issue - Ms. Beckstead is applying for a fence permit. 

She is unable to attend tonight’s meeting. Tabled. 
 

• BARLOW, Bob &/or MARINO, Elio - Western Wyoming Horseman - Non compliance issue - Lot #612 Lakeview Estates 
tract C - 173 Hwy, 89 - Fees were received on September 11th, 2006 for the fence permit. Mr. Barlow came into the office 
and left a site plan and a letter explaining why he cannot attend the P&Z meeting. (FYI: The temporary sign has been 
removed.) Mr. Barlow stated in his letter he would be unavailable until mid-December due to hunting season. Tabled. This 
issue will be removed from the agenda; Elio Marino who was renting the building has since moved out of the building and 
removed all of the fencing and the signs in non compliance.  
 

5 - P&Z MINUTES:  October 10th, 2006 Pat Marolf motioned to approve minutes. Kennis Lutz seconded. VOTE:  3- Yes; 0- 
No; 0- Abstain; 1- Absent. 
         
6 - COUNCIL MINUTES: October 17th, 2006, November 7th, 2006, November 21st, 2006 and December 5th, 2006.  
 

• P&Z ATTENDING COUNCIL MEETINGS:  
  1) December 19th, 2006 Dave Gustafson  2) January 2nd, 2007 Dave Gustafson 
      

7 - ADJOURN MEETING - Kennis L. motioned to adjourn the meeting at 8:10 P.M., Pat M. seconded. VOTE:  3- Yes; 0- No; 
0- Abstain; 1- Absent.  
 
AFTER MEETING REVIEWS/WORKSHOPS: None 

 
 
 



 

 
8 - Items given to P&Z during tonight’s meeting:  

• Town Council Minutes: November 21st, 2006 and December 5th, 2006. 
• E-mail from Elizabeth Koeckeritz concerning the International Existing Building Code. 
• Amended Town Zoning Map dated September 19th, 2006. 

 
9 -Items mailed to P&Z before meeting:  

• P&Z minutes: October 24th, 2006. 
 

 
 
 ________________________________________  _________________ 

Dave Gustafson, P&Z Chairman    Date 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________________  _________________ 
Kimberlee Jansen, Secretary    Date 

 


